Kettering Borough Council

Environmental Health 

Memorandum

	To:
Mr R. Howell
Copy to:
Licensing Unit


East Northants Council

Your ref:


Date:
8th September 2011

	From: 
Mrs Alex Gratrix

Team Leader (Environmental 
                     Protection)
Our ref:
87204
Tel:
(01536) 534348



LICENSING ACT 2003
THE ANGEL, 8 CARRINGTON STREET, KETTERING
Thank you for consulting me on this review of a Premises Licence.
Officers of Environmental Protection have been in receipt of 5 complaints about this premises since their last variation to their premises licence in August 2010 however until the weekend of 4/5 September 2011, no breach of premises licence or statutory noise nuisance had been witnessed.
The premises licence holder and the designated premises supervisor have been co-operative when complaints have been received and any suggestions made have been acted upon.

However in the early hours of 4th September 2011, a complaint was received by the out of hours officer Paul Baker and on responding, he witnessed noise from the playing of amplified recorded music from the Angel Public House, 8 Carrington Street, Kettering that constituted a statutory noise nuisance at the complainants property.  Mr Baker then visited the Angel and the Designated Premises Supervisor Ronan Flood was not on site, neither was the Premises Licence Holder Mr Simon Green.

Mr Baker served a noise abatement notice on both Mr Ronan Flood and Mr Simon Green on 5th September 2011 however these notes were technically invalid and were re-served by Mrs Alex Gratrix on 7th September 2011.

The Operations Manager for the Angel Mr Mick Willey has since informed Mrs Gratrix by email of his intention to appeal the notices.

As the premises is in receipt of a noise abatement notice, this review is supported by officers of Environmental Protection as the following premises licence condition has been breached:

Noise from regulated entertainment, or the provision of facilities for entertainment, that emanate from the premises, including external garden areas, shall be inaudible between the hours of 23:00 hours and 08:00 hours daily at the boundary of any noise-sensitive premises, generally considered to be the garden of residential dwellings.

I suggest the opening hours of the premises are restricted from the present 06.15hrs, with regulated entertinment being permitted under the current licence until 06:00 hrs, to 01.00hrs Sunday to Thursday and 02.00 Friday to Saturday and any form of regulated entertainment is to cease 30 minutes before closing.
I also suggest the setting of the noise limiting device level (apparently installed in 2008) is formalised by the following conditions:

1. Prior to any regulated entertainment taking place an electronic sound limiting device shall be installed in the premises to control the level of noise breakout. The details of the device to be installed shall be submitted to the Licensing Authority for approval.
a. Once approved the device shall be installed and set up by a competent person. It shall be set at a level agreed with the Licensing Authority. The sound level once set shall not be adjusted without prior approval of the Licensing Authority and no regulated entertainment shall take place on the premises unless the device is used to control the level of sound.
b. Upon completion of the installation a report shall be issued to the Licensing Authority certifying the agreed levels have been set and evidence of its tamper proof integrity. The device shall thereafter be maintained by a competent person every twelve months. The results of this maintenance shall include a test of its normal operation and certification of the tamper proof integrity shall be recorded and forwarded to the Licensing Authority. 
c. In the event of a malfunction affecting sound level output, action shall be taken to ameliorate the effect and the Licensing Authority shall be notified on the next working day.
2.  Electronic contacts shall be fitted to windows and emergency exits and connected to the power supply to the sound system, to ensure that the sound system will cut out should the contacts be broken.
I would be happy for the Angel to trade with these hours and conditions and to review it in 12 months time should the PL Holder wish to extend their hours.

Should you wish to discuss this further, please contact me.
Regards

Mrs Alex Gratrix
Team Leader (Environmental Protection) 

